
 

West Devon Hub 

Committee 

 

Title: Agenda 

Date: Tuesday, 12th July, 2022 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park 

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Jory 

 Vice Chairman Cllr Edmonds 

 Members: Cllr Cheadle 
Cllr Crozier 
Cllr Daniel 
Cllr Leech 
 

Cllr Mott 
Cllr Ratcliffe 
Cllr Vachon 
 

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Committee 
administrator: 

Democratic.Services@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

  Page No 

 

1.   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Members are 
invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registerable Interests and Non-Registerable Interests 
including the nature and extent of such interests they may 

have in any items to be considered at this meeting; 
 

 

3.   Items Requiring Urgent Attention  

 To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any) 
 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 4 

 Minutes of meeting held 21 June 2022 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - a period of up to 15 minutes is available 
to deal with issues raised by the public  
 

 

6.   Hub Committee Forward Plan  
 

5 - 10 

7.   Update on Progress of Rural Health and Wellbeing Pilot  
 

11 - 26 

8.   Housing Crisis - Development and Enabling  
 

27 - 42 

9.   Q1 Plan for West Devon Progress Update - Integrated 
Performance Management Report 2022/23  
 

43 - 64 



   

At a Meeting of the HUB COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, Kilworthy Park, 
Tavistock on TUESDAY the 21st day of June 2022 at 10:00 am 

 
 

Present:    Cllr N Jory – Chairman 
    Cllr C Edmonds – Vice Chairman  
 

 Cllr R Cheadle   Cllr P Crozier 
 Cllr A Leech   Cllr C Mott 
     
    

In attendance:       Chief Executive 
Section 151 Officer 
Director – Place and Enterprise 
Democratic Services Manager 
Senior Specialist - Assets 
Senior Specialist – Economic Development 

  
Other Members also in attendance in a non-voting capacity: 

 
None 

 
 
*HC 14/22  APOLOGIES 
  Apologies for this meeting were received from Cllrs L Daniel, B Ratcliffe and 
  P Vachon. 
 
 
*HC 15/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr Mott declared an interest in agenda Item 6 ‘Springhill Update’ (Minute HC 
18/22 below refers) by virtue of being a Member of the Development 
Management and Licensing Committee and remained in the meeting and took 
part in the debate thereon. 

 
 
*HC 16/22     MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Hub Committee meeting held on 7 June 2022 were 
confirmed as a correct record.  

 
 
*HC 17/22 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 It was noted that no Public Questions had been received in accordance with 

the Hub Committee Procedure Rules. 
 

 
*HC 18/22 SPRINGHILL UPDATE 

Members received a verbal update on the Springhill Project.  In summary, the 
lead officer informed that: 
 
- conditional approval had been granted by the Development Management 

and Licensing Committee in December 2021, with the tender issued on 25 
April 2022 with a deadline for submissions being 7 June 2022; 

- the current construction industry challenges.  Members noted that the 
availability of suppliers was currently being affected by the unprecedented 
challenges facing the construction industry.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



   

These were being brought about by the effects of: rising inflation; the 
ongoing conflict in the Ukraine; Brexit; the Covid-19 Pandemic; rising 
energy prices; and the UK ban on the use of rebated diesel.  Given these 
challenges, officers included the offer of a ‘Contractors Day’ on 10 May 
2022 in order to quickly gauge the likely level of interest.  Unfortunately, 
only two contractors registered for this event – one of which only being 
suitable for the demolition element of the project.  This provided an early 
indication of the potential difficulties in securing a contractor and these 
concerns were proven to be accurate when the closing date of 7 June 2022 
passed with no submissions being received;  

- six contractors had formally opted out of the process.  Upon closer 
inspection, the reasons cited for opting out had included: 

o the challenges associated with the site (size, access etc); 
o the adjacency to the highway location requiring road closures and 

management; 
o inflationary costs of materials (a risk on the supply chain) creating 

cashflow challenges for small and medium sized firms; 
o insufficient resources at this time; and 
o an inability to meet requirements; 

- the Southern Contractors Framework.  Given the importance of advancing 
the Springhill project, officers have commenced discussions with the 
Southern Contractors Framework and the following potential steps have 
been identified to be pursued: 

o the ability to issue an expression of interest through the Southern 
Contractors Framework lots; then 

o if interest was gleaned; then the Council could undertake a two-
stage process: Step 1 – based upon some general rates and quality 
questions; and Step 2 – the negotiation phase; 

Since all other potential options would involve the project being paused, 
officers were of the view that the Southern Contractors Framework was the 
only available option to pursue at this time; 

- viability issues.  Given the current economic climate, officers confirmed 
that they would continue to review the business case to account for income 
and cost avoidance. 

 
In discussion, the highlighted challenges were recognised by Members and 
the need to take into account, as part of any viability assessments, the 
significant rising third party accommodation costs were also stressed. 

 
It was then RESOLVED that the verbal update be noted. 

 
 
HC 19/22 LEVELLING-UP FUND 2 BID 

Members were presented with a report that provided an update following the 
decision of Full Council on 5 April 2022 to submit an application to the 
Levelling Up Fund Tranche 2 for Capital Funding for West Devon Transport 
Hub in Okehampton (Minute CM 70 refers). 
 
The report also set out details of the opportunity for the Council to submit a 
bid to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) which had a deadline of 1 
August 2022. 
 
In discussion, unanimous support was expressed for the recommendation and 
it was confirmed that any financial commitment from the Council would only 
be awarded in the event of the Bid being successful. 

 

Page 2



   

 
 
 
 
 
It was then RESOLVED that: 
 
1. in view of the timetable for the submission of the Bid authorised by Council 

on 5 April 2022 (Minute CM 70 refers) and the clarification of the likely 
capital costs of the West Devon Transport Hub in Okehampton, the Director 
of Place and Enterprise be further authorised to indicate in the Bid to the 
Levelling Up Fund 2, that the Council intended to make a match-funding 
contribution of £120,000; 

 
2. the match-funding contribution of £120,000 be funded from the UK Shared 

Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) monies allocated to the Council in the first 
instance. In the event that the Council was not allocated any UKSPF monies 
or they were insufficient, the match-funding contribution, be funded from the 
Business Rates Retention Earmarked Reserve; 

 
3. Council be RECOMMENDED to ratify the above decisions at its meeting to 

be held on 19 July 2022, failing which the Council’s commitment to give 
financial support for the Bid be withdrawn; and 

 
4. Council be RECOMMENDED to delegated authority to the Director of Place 

and Enterprise, in consultation with the Leader of Council, to submit the UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund Bid for £1million in accordance with section 2.13 
and Appendix 1 of the presented report, before 1 August 2022 deadline. 

 
 

(The meeting terminated at 10.25 am) 

 
_____________ 

Chairman 
 
(NOTE: THESE DECISIONS WILL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM THURSDAY, 30 JUNE 
2022, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF MINUTE HC 19/22 PARTS 3 AND 4 WHICH IS A 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 19 JULY 2022, 
UNLESS CALLED IN, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 18)
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 1 

Hub Committee Forward Plan  

About the Forward Plan 

This is the provisional forward plan for at least four months starting July 2022.  It provides an indicative date for 
matters to be considered by the Hub Committee.   Where possible, the Hub Committee will keep to the dates 
shown in the plan.  However, it may be necessary for some items to be rescheduled and other items added.  

The forward plan is published to publicise consultation dates and enable dialogue between the Hub Committee 
and all Councillors, the public, and other stakeholders. It will also assist the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in planning their contribution to policy development and holding the Hub Committee to account.   

The Plan is published on the Council’s website (www.westdevon.gov.uk)   

 

About the Hub Committee 
The Hub Committee currently consists of nine Councillors. Each has responsibility for a particular area of the 
Council’s work. 

 Leader of the Council – Cllr N Jory 
 Deputy Leader of the Council, with specific responsibility for Resources and Performance – Cllr C Edmonds 
 Lead Hub Member for Enabling Inclusive and Accessible Services – Cllr R Cheadle 
 Lead Hub Member for the Economy - Cllr P Crozier  
 Lead Hub Member for the Natural Environment - Cllr L Daniel 
 Lead Hub Member for Leisure, Health and Wellbeing - Cllr A F Leech  
 Lead Hub Member for the Built Environment - Cllr C Mott  
 Lead Hub Member for Communities - Cllr P Vachon  
 Lead Hub Member for Housing – Cllr B Ratcliffe 

 
Further information on the workings of the Hub Committee, including latest information on agenda items, can be 
obtained by contacting Democratic Services on 01803 861105 or by e-mail to 
democratic.services@swdevon.gov.uk  
 
 
All items listed in this Forward Plan will be discussed in public at the relevant meeting, unless otherwise 
indicated with * 

 

 

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 2 

Forward Plan from July 2022 

Portfolio 
Area 

Report Title and Summary Lead Member 
/ Officer 

Documents to be 
considered in 
making decision 

Date of 
Decision 

Consultees 
and means of 
consultation 

Homes Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

Cllr Ratcliffe / 
Issy Blake 

Report of Head of 
Housing 

12 July 2022  

Council Title: Quarter 1 Integrated 
Performance Management 
Report 

Purpose: To consider the 
integrated performance 
management report for the 
Quarter 1 period of 2022/23. 

Cllr Jory / Neil 
Hawke 

Report of Head of 
Strategy and 
Projects 

12 July 2022  

Leisure, 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Title: Health and Wellbeing 
Pilot 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that provides an opportunity for 
Members to have an input into 
the Pilot. 

Cllr Leech / Ian 
Luscombe 

Report of the Head 
of Environmental 
Health 

12 July 2022  

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title:  Medium Term Financial 
Strategy for the three years 
2022/23 to 2024/25 

Purpose: To set the strategic 
intention for all of the different 
strands of funding available to 
the Council. This brings together 
all known factors affecting the 
Council’s financial position and 
its financial sustainability, to 
provide a long term financial 
forecast. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Lisa Buckle 

Report of Section 
151 Officer 

13 September 
2022 

 

Homes Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

Cllr Ratcliffe / 
Issy Blake 

Report of Head of 
Housing 

13 September 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Capital Programme 
Monitoring Report to Month 4 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Capital 
Programme Monitoring Report 
to Month 4. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Pauline 
Henstock 

Report of Head of 
Finance 

13 September 
2022 

 

Page 6



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 3 

Portfolio 
Area 

Report Title and Summary Lead Member 
/ Officer 

Documents to be 
considered in 
making decision 

Date of 
Decision 

Consultees 
and means of 
consultation 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Revenue Budget 
Monitoring Report to Month 4 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Revenue 
Budget Monitoring Report to 
Month 4. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Lisa Buckle 

Report of Section 
151 Officer 

13 September 
2022 

 

Communities Title: Key Partnerships Funding 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the findings of the 
responses received from the 
Council’s key partners in respect 
of extending funding provision. 

Cllr Vachon / 
Neil Hawke 

Report of the Head 
of Strategy and 
Projects 

13 September 
2022 

 

Inclusive and 
Accessible 
Services 

Title: Customer Access Strategy 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the draft 
Customer Access Strategy for 
approval. 

Cllr Cheadle / 
Catherine 
Bowen 

Report of the 
Business Manager – 
Specialists 

13 September 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: 2021/22 Capital Outturn 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the final Capital 
Outturn figures for 2021/22. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Pauline 
Henstock 

Report of the 
Deputy Section 151 
Officer 

13 September 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: 2021/22 Revenue Outturn 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the final Revenue 
Outturn figures for 2021/22 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Pauline 
Henstock 

Report of the 
Deputy Section 151 
Officer 

13 September 
2022 

 

Natural 
Environment 

Title: Climate Emergency 
Planning Statement 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that seeks to make a 
recommendation to Council to 
adopt a Climate Emergency 
Planning Statement. 

Cllr Daniel / Jo 
Lee 

Report of the 
Strategic Planning 
Manager (Joint 
Local Plan) 

13 September 
2022 

 

Page 7



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 4 

Portfolio 
Area 

Report Title and Summary Lead Member 
/ Officer 

Documents to be 
considered in 
making decision 

Date of 
Decision 

Consultees 
and means of 
consultation 

Natural 
Environment 

Title: Devon Carbon Plan 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the draft Devon 
Carbon Plan for formal 
consideration. 

Cllr Daniel / 
Drew Powell 

Report of Director 
of Strategy and 
Governance 

13 September 
2022 

 

Council Title: Quarter 2 Integrated 
Performance Management 
Report 2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that sets out the Integrated 
Performance Management 
report for Quarter 2 of 2022/23. 

Cllr Jory / Neil 
Hawke 

Report of the Head 
of Strategy and 
Projects 

1 November 
2022 

 

Resources & 
Performance 

Title: Council Tax Rebate 
Discretionary Scheme 

Purpose: To receive a further 
report that seeks to: 

- Provide an update on the 
number of households that 
have received additional 
financial support through 
Phase 1 of the Scheme; and 

- Sets out recommendations 
for Phase 2. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Steve 
Mullineaux 

Report of Deputy 
Chief Executive 

1 November 
2022 

 

Homes Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

Cllr Ratcliffe / 
Issy Blake 

Report of Head of 
Housing 

1 November 
2022 

 

Leader Title:  Draft Revenue and 
Capital Budget Proposals 
2023/24 

Purpose:  To consider a report 
that presents for consultation a 
set of draft Revenue and Capital 
Budget proposals for 2023/24. 

Cllr Jory / Lisa 
Buckle 

Report of Strategic 
Lead of Finance 

13 December 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Write-off Reports Q1 and 
Q2 2022/23 

Purpose: The Council is 
responsible for the collection of: 
Housing Rents, Sundry Debts 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Lisa Buckle 

Report of Strategic 
Lead of Finance 

13 December 
2022 

 

Page 8



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 5 

Portfolio 
Area 

Report Title and Summary Lead Member 
/ Officer 

Documents to be 
considered in 
making decision 

Date of 
Decision 

Consultees 
and means of 
consultation 

including Housing Benefit 
Overpayments, Council Tax and 
National Non-Domestic Rates. 
The report informs Members of 
the debt written off for these 
revenue streams. 

Homes Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

Cllr Ratcliffe / 
Issy Blake 

Report of Head of 
Housing 

13 December 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Capital Programme 
Monitoring Report to Month 7 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Capital 
Programme Monitoring Report 
to Month 7. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Pauline 
Henstock 

Report of Section 
151 Officer 

13 December 
2022 

 

Inclusive and  
Accessible 
Services 

Title: Contact Centre 
Improvement Plan: Six Month 
Review 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents a six-month 
progress review on the Contact 
Centre Improvement Plan 

Cllr Cheadle / 
Steve 
Mullineaux 

Report of Deputy 
Chief Executive 

13 December 
2022 

 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Revenue Budget 
Monitoring Report to Month 7 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Revenue 
Budget Monitoring Report to 
Month 7. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Lisa Buckle 

Report of Section 
151 Officer 

13 December 
2022 

 

 Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

  31 January 
2023 

 

Leader Title: Draft Revenue and Capital 
Budget Proposals 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that seeks to recommend to 

Cllr Jory / Lisa 
Buckle 

Report of the 
Section 151 Officer 

31 January 
2023 

 

Page 9



 

 
Hub Committee Forward Plan – July 2022 | 6 

Portfolio 
Area 

Report Title and Summary Lead Member 
/ Officer 

Documents to be 
considered in 
making decision 

Date of 
Decision 

Consultees 
and means of 
consultation 

Council the draft Revenue and 
Capital Budget proposals. 

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Quarter 3 Integrated 
Performance Management 
Report 2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that sets out the Integrated 
Performance Management 
report for Quarter 3 of 2022/23. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Neil Hawke 

Report of the Head 
of Strategy and 
Projects 

31 January 
2023 

 

 Title: Housing Crisis – Standing 
Agenda Item 

  7 March 2023  

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Revenue Budget 
Monitoring Report to Month 10 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Revenue 
Budget Monitoring Report to 
Month 10. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Lisa Buckle 

Report of Section 
151 Officer 

7 March 2023  

Resources 
and 
Performance 

Title: Capital Programme 
Monitoring Report to Month 10 
2022/23 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Capital 
Programme Monitoring Report 
to Month 10. 

Cllr Edmonds / 
Pauline 
Henstock 

Report of Head of 
Finance 

7 March 2023  

Leader Title: Draft Annual Report of 
Achievements 

Purpose: To consider a report 
that presents the Council’s draft 
Annual Report of Achievements 
for 2022/23 

Cllr Jory / Neil 
Hawke 

Report of the Head 
of Strategy and 
Projects 

7 March 2023  

    11 April 2023  

 

Page 10



Report to: Hub Committee  

Date: 12 July 2022 

Title: Update on progress of Rural Health and 
Wellbeing Pilot 

Portfolio Area: Health and Wellbeing – Cllr Leech 

Wards Affected: Bere Alston 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

Y 

Date next steps can be taken:   

  

Author: Ian Luscombe Role: Head of Environmental 
Health and Licensing  

Contact: Ian.Luscombe@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

Recommendations:   

That the Hub Committee: 

1. endorse the approach adopted by the Pilot Project with the aim of 
improving health and wellbeing of residents; and  

 
2.  note and endorse the publicity campaign to raise awareness of and 

access to the support already available to residents impacted by the 
cost of living challenges. 

 
Executive summary  

 
1.1 The Project aims to deliver the request of Elected Members in their   

Corporate Strategy Objective (Delivery Plan Action CW1.1) to co-ordinate 
partners to deliver a rural health and wellbeing pilot study in an area of 
West Devon. 

 
1.2 The Project is part of the Strengthening Community Wellbeing theme 

of the A Plan for West Devon strategy that is focused on reducing 
health inequalities and rural poverty. 

 
1.3 The overall objectives are to reduce the impact of rural poverty, 

improve health and wellbeing and to measure long term improvements 
to health and wellbeing using health inequality indicators. 

 
1.4 As the health indicators have been reviewed it has become clear that 

poverty is just one of the factors effecting health and wellbeing. When 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



trying to address rural poverty it is sensible to address other health 
and wellbeing issues as they are likely to be linked. 

 
1.5 There is a likelihood that use of the term “poverty“ will have a negative 

impact on the community that we are intending to support, and be a 
barrier to constructive engagement. There is a social stigma to being 
linked with poverty so the project will be referred to as a Health and 
Wellbeing Pilot. Issues around rural poverty will continue to be central 
to the Pilot. 

 
1.6 The location of the Pilot has been chosen based upon advice and data 

from Devon County Council’s Public Health Team. Appendix B (area 
Profile for Bere Ferrers) provides a comparison between Bere Ferrers 
and other West Devon LSOA (Lower Layer Super Output Areas). 
LSOA’s have an average population of 1500 people or 650 households. 
This provides a comparison against similar sized areas. Indicators that 
were reviewed included Income, Employment, Education Skills and 
Training, Health and Disability, Crime, Barriers to Housing and 
Services, Living Environment and Income Deprivation affecting 
Children. South Brent consistently scored low against these indicators 
in comparison to similar sized areas. 

 
1.7 The LSOA areas are shown in Appendix C on a map that identifies the 

geographical boundaries of Bere Ferrers LSOA and the Ward 
Councillor’s Area. The pilot will extend to the greater area (ie the Ward 
Councillor Area), looking at what support is available to those areas, 
what the local issues are and enabling community led solutions. 

 
1.8 Key to the success of the project is the enabling of communities to 

select their own outcomes that they consider to be desirable and have 
the most important effect upon their wellbeing. For this reason the 
objectives of the project in the initial stages will remain broad. We will 
give the Communities the ability to determine what success will look 
like for themselves. 

 
1.9 It is essential that we work in partnership with other Statutory 

organisations and also with the Voluntary and Community (VCO) sector 
who are the key to the long term sustainability and lasting legacy of 
the pilot.  

 
1.10 Current partners in the project include Devon County Council, Primary 

Care Networks, Police, CVS, Citizens Advice, Parish Councils, South 
West Water, Livewest Housing, Fusion, Devon Communities Together, 
Action for Children, Learn Devon, Young Devon and The Football 
Association.  

 
1.11 Residents are currently experience a range of cost of living pressures 

that may impact on their health and wellbeing. Whilst the pilot project 
is both longer term and aspirational, there is much that the Council is 
doing now to respond to the current challenges. 

 

Page 12



1.12 The Council has launched a campaign to make residents throughout 
West Devon aware of the support that is being provided. This is 
summarised in the leaflet in appendix A. To date we have paid out 
twenty thousand payments of the Governments £150 cost of living 
support grant, extended the grant funded Vulnerability Officer for a 
further three years to assist the most vulnerable in our community, 
agreed a discretionary Council Tax rebate scheme for vulnerable 
households (not eligible for £150 scheme.) and allocated over (300k in 
WDBC) for Green Homes Grants to improve heating and insulation in 
existing properties. 

 
1.13 We will continue to develop our support directory giving easy access to 

customers to access services that are of benefit to them. 
 
2. Background  
    
 

2.1 Rural poverty is the term used to describe the negative inequalities 
that exist when a person lives in a rural area, as oppose to somewhere 
more urban. The relevance of rural inequality is only significant where 
it has a detrimental effect on the person, family or community that is 
experiencing it. Many residents will have chosen to live in West Devon 
for the lifestyle and environmental benefits, which is why the negative 
impact of rural poverty is most prevalent as an individual’s 
circumstances change, i.e. they need to find work or housing, develop 
new care needs or become more or less independent. 

 
2.2 The pockets of “rural poverty” within West Devon are well hidden by 

the relative affluence of the district as a whole. The area has some 
really effective Voluntary and Community activity in the area and it is 
important to highlight areas where this work is successful and could be 
extended to provide additional support to the communities that need it 
most. The Council and its partners should empower communities to 
create sustainable solutions that have strong foundations and the 
flexibility to best meet the needs of the local people. 

 
2.3 The Borough Council is an important enabler is ensuring that 

communities are well served by key services; health, transport, 
policing and for ensuring that required services are accessible to 
everyone, including hard to reach groups. 

 
2.4 The Council has been able to use public health data to establish those 

most affected by health inequality in the pilot area. This will allow us to 
initially target our resource to help to raise awareness of the data that 
defines the community, and develop actions to ensure effective and 
inclusive engagement throughout.  

 
2.5 The Covid pandemic demonstrated just how effective community 

groups can be in assisting the local population where there is a clearly 
identified need.  

 

Page 13



2.6 The Council has actively engaged with a number of partners including 
Parish Councils, Devon County Council, Primary Care Network, Police, 
Fusion Leisure, Livewest, The Football Association, South West Water, 
CVS and Citizens Advice 

 
2.7 In Bere Alston we have attended a community health and wellbeing 

session and taken the opportunity to share the public health data with 
partners at the event. We have identified a central community location 
for future projects and additional key contacts that are already working 
to support the community. We will be arranging an initial meeting of 
partners to understand the existing service provision and identify any 
gaps that may exist. We have also established key connections that we 
can utilise for making new referrals to specialist agencies that provide 
support on a range of issues, such as Action for Children and the 
Tamar Energy Community. 

 
 

2.8 The information in Appendix B provides a profile of health data in Bere 
Alston. The most striking aspect of the data was that Bere Alston 
experiences the highest number of children effected by poverty in West 
Devon. 

 
2.9 Whilst West Devon is effected by wider heath inequalities there is 

already a true sense of community in place with many effective and 
ambitious support schemes already in place. Partners are committed to 
acknowledging and continuing this work whilst working together to 
identify any gaps in the services provided. 

 
 
3 Outcomes/outputs  
 

3.1 The overall ambition of the project is to reduce health inequalities by 
helping to build on an existing community infrastructure that provides a 
sustainable solution to the health and wellbeing needs of the 
community.  
 

3.2 Interventions will also aim to reduce rural poverty by signposting to 
support services such as for example; energy and money advice, action 
for children and services that support training and enterprise such as 
Learn Devon and Devon County’s Health and Social Care Skills 
Accelerator programme. The Council will also look to at opportunities to 
directly deliver Council services in these areas with support from 
partners. 

 
3.3 In reality some interventions may be too small to have an overall 

impact on area statistics but may in the short term assist individual 
families in the communities to improve their wellbeing and reduce the 
impact of health inequalities. Success may not be immediate, some 
health inequalities will take years of support to change and effect the 
public health indicators.  

 

Page 14



3.4 We intend that the community members themselves will tell us what 
the successful outcome of the Council working in a focussed way with 
the community will be. This will empower communities and make them 
jointly responsible for the outcomes they wish to achieve. 
 

3.5 One of the key outcomes that will be achieved by working closer with 
communities is a better understanding of local need and existing 
services. This will also help build trust and a stronger relationships to 
guide future service consultation and delivery. 

 
3.6 In terms of the immediate work being carried out , the Council has 

produced a leaflet that summarises the support on offer to residents 
across the whole of West Devon and signposts them to where they can 
get that service (Appendix A) 
 

 
4. Options available and consideration of risk 
 

4.1 With regards to the Health and Wellbeing Pilot Project the Council has 
taken care to identify existing services, support and infrastructure that 
is already in place to ensure that they are not duplicated or ignored. It 
is important to build on existing success. 
 

4.2 The option of providing short term one off interventions was considered 
and whilst some may be effective in the short term, we want to provide 
a lasting, sustainable legacy from our closer involvement with the 
community. Communities need to be worked with and not “done to”. 

 
4.3 We have consulted with public health experts to ensure that we follow a 

tried and tested model of intervention. 
 

4.4 We have received a direct steer from Members in the Council’s strategy 
to help to deal with rural poverty and by association wider health and 
wellbeing. 

 
4.5 Consultation has taken place with partner organisations, communities, 

Local Elected Members and Lead Elected Members for Wellbeing.  
 

4.6 The Council has identified the pressures that residents are experiencing 
now in relation to the cost of living and reacted quickly by ensuring that 
schemes are in place to support residents and that these are well 
publicised. 

 
4.7 We have chosen Bere Alston as a pilot area due to there already being 

a strong community infrastructure that we can work with and some 
gaps in service provision that we can identify and support. The Health 
Data for the area suggests that improvement can be made, not least in 
the poverty effecting children criteria. 

 
 
 

 

Page 15



5.  Proposed Way Forward  
 

5.1 The Project will now progress to its next phase which is consultation 
with the community and local stakeholders to ensure that objectives are 
set that match the needs of the community. 
 

5.2 We will then enter the delivery phase to ensure that, once all objectives 
are considered and the support identified to achieve them, we will work 
to enable them to be achieved.  

 
5.3 We will then measure the impact of the interventions, and feedback to 

the Communities and stakeholders. 
 

6. Implications  
Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  
proposals  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 
 

Y Members are being asked to comment on the 
Report and no decision is required. 

Financial 
implications to 
include reference 
to value for 
money 
 

Y £22,500 has been identified as a budget for the 
delivery of the project objectives. Until those 
objectives are set in partnership with the 
Community we are unable to allocate the resource. 
Investment will be focussed on enabling 
sustainable solutions for the community  

Risk Y The Council has a duty to cooperate with Devon 
County Council who have the overarching 
responsibility for Public Health, led by the Director 
of Public Health. The Councils Strategy identifies 
Wellbeing as a key area of priority. To not work on 
the health and wellbeing of our communities would 
miss out on an opportunity to support the most 
vulnerable people in our communities 

Supporting 
Corporate 
Strategy  

Y Strengthening Community Wellbeing is a key 
theme in the corporate strategy. 

Climate Change - 
Carbon / 
Biodiversity 
Impact  
 
 

Y Once the objectives of the project are known we 
will work to understand their potential impact , 
both positive and negative, upon climate change 
and biodiversity. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
Equality and 
Diversity 
 

Y This project is about supporting hard to reach 
communities and residents 

Safeguarding 
 

Y We will ensure that safeguarding is fully integrated 
into the referral process to other Voluntary and 
Community organisations. 

Page 16



Community 
Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

Y The Police are committed to working in partnership 
with the Council on this project. We have good 
established links with the Police via the Community 
Safety Partnership. 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

Y This work will enable our health, safety and 
wellbeing objectives to be achieved 

Other 
implications 

N  
 

 
Supporting Information 
Appendices: 

A. Cost of Living: A Public Information Leaflet 
B. Area Profile for Bere Ferrers 
C. Map of LSOA areas 

 
Background Papers: 
None 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



04/07/2022

We know that in recent months, more of you will 
have considered the impact that the increase in 
the cost of living has on your day to day lives. 

I would urge anyone in the Borough who is struggling, 
whether that’s emotionally, financially or because 
you need practical help, to get in touch with the 
organisations contained within this leaflet and seek 
support.
Many of us may find ourselves in a position that we’ve 
never experienced before, but its important that you act 
now to prevent any problems getting worse. There are 
many organisations that can help and the Borough 
Council will do all we can to support you.

Cllr Tony Leech 
Lead Member for Community 
Wellbeing

DRAFT

1

Page 19



04/07/2022

www.westdevon.gov.uk/energy-rebate

.westdevon.

www.westdevon.gov.uk/
council-tax-reduction

www.westdevon.gov.uk/
household-support-fund

2

Page 20



04/07/2022

www.westdevon.gov.uk/
housing-services

www.westdevon.gov.uk/housingadvicewww.westdevon.gov.uk/downsizing

www.westdevon.gov.uk/dhp

3

Page 21



04/07/2022

www.ruraldevoncab.org.uk

08082 787999

www.westdevon.gov.uk/support-directory

www.westdevon.gov.uk

4

Page 22



Primary Care Network 
PCN Clinical Director

Devon County Cllr

Parish Council 

LSOA (Neighbourhood) Area Code

007B 007A
0-15 235 138

16-64 872 801
65-84 299 582
85+ 48 51

Total 1454 1572

Deprivation Indicators Measure 007B 007A

National Rating 7194 20042

WD Rating 1 22

National Rating 6464 15518

WD Rating 2 12

National Rating 10766 24745

WD Rating 3 22

National Rating 7067 17635

WD Rating 1 15

National Rating 30224 23912

Income -  The proportion of the 
population in an area experiencing 
deprivation relating to low income. 

Employment - The proportion of the 
working-age population in an area 

involuntarily excluded from the labour 
market.

Education Skills & Training - The 
lack of attainment and skills in the local 

population

Health & Disability - The risk of 
premature death and the impairment of 
quality of life through poor physical or 

mental health

Crime - The risk of personal and material 

l.

West Devon Comparison (#1 
most deprived)

31 (Total LSOA areas WD) 1 24

bereferrersparishcouncil@btcon
nect.com

007B (central)/007A

Demographics 

National Deprivation Rating  (#1 
most deprived)

32844 (Total LSOA areas 
England)

9941 19080

West Devon PCN
Dr Mike Maguire

Cllr Philip Saunders

WD Ward Members Cllr Angela Blackman

Cllr Peter Crozier

Bere Alston/Ferrers

Page 23



WD Rating 21 5

National Rating 32574 17071

WD Rating 31 18

National Rating 10326 5151

WD Rating 21 17

National Rating 8182 17496

WD Rating 1 15

National Rating 9616 24777

WD Rating 1 25

Additional Indicators Devon Average 007B 007A
Children living in poverty 12.20% 16.10% 17.80%

Houses classed as fuel poor 10.70% 15.90% 9.80%
Residents not in employment, 

education or training
5% 3.40% 16.70%

Benefit claimant count 4% 6.00% 4.30%
Physically inactive 22% 19.90%

Life expectancy at birth (years) 82.3 77.3 85.2
Preventable deaths per 100,000 119.7 217 74.5

Permanent admissions to 
residential and nursing care per 

100,000
538 275.5 0

Self harm admissions - (10 - 24yr 
olds) per 100,000 3017 1456 3371

People living with dementia 6% 6.00% 7%
Good access to Green Spaces 82% 88%

Good social contact 72% 72%
Feel safe 89% 89%

Living Environment - The quality of 
the local environment

Income deprivation affecting 
children - The actual proportion of 

children aged 0-15 living in income deprived 
families

Income deprivation affecting 
older people - The proportion of all 

those aged 60 or over who experience 
income deprivation

victimisation at local level.

Barriers to Housing & Services - 
Geographic and affordability barriers of 

housing and services

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 

(LSOA) Lower Super Output Areas (Neighbourhood) - Pilot 

LSOA – 007A (Outer) LSOA – 007B (Central) 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Hub Committee   

Date: 12 July 2022 

Title: Housing Crisis – Development and 
Enabling  

Portfolio Area: Cllr Barry Ratcliffe - Homes 

.  

Wards Affected: All 

Urgent Decision: N  Approval and 
clearance 
obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken: 
 

 

  

Author: Alex Rehaag Role: Senior Specialist – 
Affordable Housing 

Contact: 01822 813722 email: 
Alex.rehaag@swdevon.gov.uk 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Hub Committee note the progress regarding 
affordable housing delivery. 

 
  

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



1. Executive summary 
  

 
1.1 This report informs Members of the delivery work 

undertaken in tackling the Housing Crisis.   These activities 
also support both the Corporate Strategy – ‘A Plan for West 
Devon’ and the Housing Strategy – ‘Better Homes, Better 
Lives’.  The information that will be covered is: 

 
i. Historic housing delivery broken down to financial 

years from 2019 
ii. Projected delivery for 2022/23 & 23/24 
iii. Response and customer access to the ‘Enhanced 

Tenants Incentive Scheme’ 
iv. Disabled Adapted Panel 
v. Financial contributions secured to enable affordable 

housing 
 

2. Background  
 

2.1 The Joint Local Plan (JLP) sets a target for affordable housing 
delivery of 6,600 new homes from 2014 – 2034 across all 3 
authorities (South Hams, West Devon & Plymouth). The 
Thriving Towns and Villages (TTV) area of the plan provides 
for 2050 new affordable homes over this period.   

 
2.2  The Corporate Strategy sets a rolling target of 100 affordable 

homes per annum across South Hams and West Devon from 
2021 – 2024.  The Housing Strategy is aligned to this target 
and early indication is that the target is being met and 
exceeded significantly.  

 
3. Historic Housing Delivery since 2019 
 
3.1 The table below sets out the number of affordable houses of 

all tenure types delivered since 2018.  Notable delivery 
throughout the time period has been achieved in Tavistock, at 
Embden Grange (Butcher Park) 38 units, 29 at The Tors 
(Callington Road), 17 at Broadleigh Park (New Launceston 
Road) and 28 units at Bellacouch Meadows in Chagford. 

 
Year S106 units 
2018/2019 27 
2019/2020 49 
2020/2021 49 
2021/2022 36 
Total 161 

Page 28



 
3.2 The table demonstrates that in the last 4 financial years, 161 

properties have been built as a requirement of the S106 
agreement for each site.   

 
3.3 The latest monitoring position within the JLP shows that 800 

affordable homes have been built within the TTV since 2014 – 
see below, with blue bars representing the TTV area.  This 
gives a surplus position of 82 dwellings above the number we 
would expect at this stage of the plan.   

 

  
 
3.4 The table below shows the number of affordable homes 

delivered in the geographical areas of the JLP: 
 
  

Net affordable housing delivery across JLP plan area 2014-
2021    

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 
TTVPA 98 105 186 137 86 90 98 800 
PPA 30 363 26 312 320 185 -166 1070 
SHLPA 42 75 157 117 98 116 77 682 
WDLPA 56 30 29 23 0 26 40 204 
SHTTV 42 75 157 114 86 64 58 596 
SHPPA 0 0 0 3 12 52 19 86 
PCC 30 363 26 309 308 133 -185 984 

 
 Code for table above:  

TTVPA – Towns and Thriving Villages Policy Area – South 
Hams & West Devon inclusive 

 PPA – Plymouth Policy area 

Page 29



 SHLPA – South Hams Local Planning Area 
 WDLPA – West Devon Local Planning Area 
 SHTTV – South Hams Towns & Thriving Villages 

SHPPA – South Hams Plymouth Policy Area (Sherford/Allern 
Lane) 
PCC – Plymouth City Council 

 
West Devon planning area is highlighted in the table in Green.  
The delivery from 2021 – 2024, including all projected 
delivery for West Devon and South Hams LPA areas shows 
that the target will be met and exceeded delivering 
approximately 604 affordable dwellings over the three year 
period. 

 
 
3.5 The S106 agreement for Callington Road, Tavistock, a site 

that will deliver up to 750 homes, only requires 17% of this 
total (128) to be affordable.   Pleasingly, through the use of 
Homes England money and partnership working between 
Vistry, LiveWest and the Council, this percentage will be 
increased. 

 
3.6 In the first phase of Callington Road, where reserved matters 

are approved, an additional 46 homes have been secured 
through additionality.  This increases the % of affordable 
homes from 17% to 23%. The intention is for subsequent 
phases to also over deliver and those units will be reported 
through the monitoring of the Housing Strategy.   

 
4 Projected Housing Delivery 2022-2024 

 
4.1 As set out above, Callington Road will see the delivery of 

‘additionality’ units in the delivery figures from March 2022/23 
onwards through LiveWest’s partnership, working with Vistry.  
There may be other Registered Providers who have the ability 
to access this funding and bring forward additional units. 

4.2 These additional affordable homes will be advertised through 
Devon Home Choice and allocated using the adopted 
Allocations Policy. 

 
4.3 The table below shows estimated projected affordable home 

delivery figures for the next 2 years. Allowances must be 
made within this for project slippage as labour and material 
shortages continue to be major challenges for the sector and 
may cause delays: 

 
 

Page 30



Year Affordable Homes (S106) 
2022/2023 72 
2023/2024 27 
Total 99 

 
 This may be increased if developers work with Homes England 

to deliver more affordable homes than the S106 required, as 
is demonstrated at Callington Road.  

 
4.4 A Plan for West Devon includes targets to deliver a cumulative 

total across the TTV area of 300 Affordable homes from 2021 
– 2024 (100 each year).  There have currently been 174 
affordable houses delivered across the TTV area over this 
period and the Council is therefore on track to meet the target 
of 300.  

 
4.5 From 2018 to 2024 it is estimated that 1525 new units of new 

build affordable accommodation will have been delivered in 
the TTV area of South Hams and West Devon. This 
significantly exceeds the JLP target to deliver 2050 units by 
2034, given there are 11 years remaining. 

 
4.6 Whilst new housing is just one of the challenges, these 

numbers support the Council’s ambitions in tackling the crisis 
with a better than expected delivery programme. 

 
4.7 The Housing Strategy and the JLP state that the Council 

should be achieving 30% on-site delivery.  It is likely this 
target will be exceeded through our Registered Provider’s 
strategic funding allocation and additionality units. 

 
4.8 Further Affordable Housing units have been approved through 

the planning process, but a timescale cannot be provided for 
delivery of these properties beyond 2024.  These planning 
consents can be seen in Appendix 1. 

 
 
 

 
5 Enhanced Tenants Incentive Scheme (TIS) 
 
5.1 This scheme has been in operation for a number of years 

where grants of up to £2500 were made where a tenant of a 
housing association downsized their affordable property eg – 
3-bed to a 1-bed = £2500) 

 

Page 31



5.2 Since 2019 the scheme has assisted 8 households to downsize 
to more appropriately sized accommodation ensuring better 
use of the current stock. 

 
5.3 As a response to the Housing Crisis, this grant doubled and is 

now one of the most generous schemes nationally. The size of 
the incentive is designed to create more vacancies in our 
affordable rented housing stock.  

 
5.4 Since the enhanced scheme was introduced 1 applicant has 

downsized and received the enhanced grant payment.  
However, early indications are that the change in policy to 
double the grant is having an impact as a further 15 new 
downsizing applicants have registered on Devon Home Choice 
since the payment was enhanced.   

 
5.5 Applicants for downsizing are being contacted and offered 

intensive help to downsize their accommodation.  Barriers to 
downsizing are being explored with the help of our RP 
partners. 

 
5.6 This scheme is promoted by our RP partners through tenant’s 

newsletters, social media channels and through the council’s 
communications plan. 

 
 

6 Disabled Adapted Panel (DAP) 
 
6.1 The DAP was formed to respond to ‘matching the right people 

to the right property’, which means making best use of 
adaptions already in place within existing stock. This was also 
to ensure that there was support to assist with a move, or to 
adapt a home that an applicant on Devon Home Choice (DHC) 
currently resides in.   

 
6.2 The panel, made up of Occupational Therapists, Social 

Workers, Environmental Health Officers and Housing 
Professionals, seek to find the best solutions to an applicant’s 
current home. If that is not achievable then the final option 
would be a move to an alternative home which better meets 
their needs. 

 
6.3 From April to September 2021 there was an average of 20 

applicants on the DAP list for West Devon.  This area of work 
was identified to require further staffing resource.   

 

Page 32



6.4 Resource was provided through the appointment of the 
housing policy and projects officer role in October 2021.  
Since that time there has been 9 West Devon applicants with 
successful outcomes.  DAP has proved to be a very positive 
and collaborative solution to the tackling this area of housing 
pressure and continues to be well supported.  Case Studies 
are available by request. 

 

Quarter 

No. of WD DAP 
applicants on 
register 

No. of WD DAP 
applicants housed or 
able to remain in 
current home 

Apr to June 2022 33 2  

Jan to Mar 2022 30 6 

Oct to Dec 2021 24 1 

July to Sept 2021 20 1 

Apr to June 2021 20 1 

Jan to Mar 2021 14 0 
 
 
6.5 The table above shows an increase in column 2 each quarter. 

This is due to the early identification of applicants that require 
a move or adaptations to their current home.  Adaptations 
can take time to arrange and moves can be slower in coming 
forward. Sourcing bespoke properties, such as ground floor 
accommodation or bungalows can take time.   

 
6.6 The figure rising in column two may appear negative, however 

this should be viewed as a positive as applicants are being 
identified early.  Early inclusion of these applicants through 
the DAP could ultimately avoid crisis and avoidance of social 
care intervention. 

 
7 Financial contributions made in lieu of onsite delivery    

 
7.1 The Council has a process for dealing with Section 106 off site 

contributions for affordable housing.  Financial payments 
made in lieu of affordable housing can only be for this 
purpose. 

 
7.2 The Council currently holds £692,699.19, most of which is 

already allocated to projects for Affordable Housing including 
the Spring Hill project. 

 

Page 33



7.3 There are currently no immediate pressures to spend this 
money, all collected funds have spend dates of over 3 years 
before a developer can claim this back.  The team continue to 
seek options to spend the money collected within the 
timescales. 

 
 

 
8.  Outcomes/outputs  
 

This report sets out the significant interventions and activity 
West Devon Council continues to make to ensure the best 
housing outcomes for its residents.   
 
The Council is meeting the following targets from the Plan for 
West Devon: 
 
IH1.1 Deliver local homes that meet the needs of local people. 
 
IH1.3 Develop our understanding of housing need and 
implement plans for responding 

 
9. Options available and consideration of risk  
 

There are no risk implications, this report is an update only to     
the Housing Crisis declaration. 

 
 
10.  Proposed Way Forward  
 

That the Hub Committee notes the update on housing delivery 
activities and continues to receive relevant updates.  

 
11. Implications  
Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  
proposal
s  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governan
ce 
 

N There are no Legal implications in this report.  
Report only to be noted by the Hub 
Committee. 
 
 

Financial 
implications to 
include 

N There are no financial implications within this 
report.  The Hub committee is asked to note its 
content.   

Page 34



reference to 
value for money 
 

 

Risk N There are no risks to this report, the Hub 
Committee is asked to note the content. 

Supporting A 
Plan for West 
Devon  

Y Homes thematic area of the Corporate 
Strategy and update of the Housing Crisis 

Consultation 
and 
Engagement 
Undertaken or 
Proposed 

N No consultation required.  Communications 
plan in place where required for the Tenants 
Incentive Scheme 

Climate Change 
- Carbon / 
Biodiversity 
Impact  
 
 

N Not applicable in noting the report. 
 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
Equality and 
Diversity 
 

N None. Already assessed in the adopted 
strategies 

Safeguarding 
 

N No Safeguarding implications   

Community 
Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

N There are not any potential positive or 
negative impact on crime and disorder 
reduction. 
 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

N Not applicable 

Other 
implications 

N  
 

 
Supporting Information 
Appendices: 
Development Information – Appendix 1 
 
Background Papers: 
Housing Crisis Motion 
A Plan For West Devon 
Housing Strategy – Better Homes, Better Lives 
Approval and clearance of report 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Parish/Town No of 
Affordable 
Homes/Off 

site 
contribution 

Description % of 
affordable 
housing 

Bridestowe, Town Farm 

9 

Outline application granted to provide 24 units 40% of which will be AH.  
2957/21/ARM 8 x 2bed 1x 2bed DMS  

40% 

Chagford Bellacouch 
meadows  

15 &                           
£300,000 

Blue cedar provided age restricted units and supplied off site contribution 
which is being held by DNPA.    

Chagford Bellacouch 
meadows  

28 

Scheme with CG Fry.  91 units in total with 28 Ah units.  All occupied 

35% 

Crapstone Abbey 
Meadows 

22 

Site granted consent on appeal (0147/17) for 22 units to include 40% 
AH.  Properties on site and open day will take place in July 2022. 
1x3be 1x 4 bedshared ownership  Affordable rented 3 x 2 bed, 1 x 3 bed, 
2 x1 bed 

40% 

Follygate, Brandize 
Park 

6 

Planning permission granted on appeal 27/09/2021. 0321/20/OPA 6 
discount sale properties. 3963/19/OPA 
 2 x 1 bed, 3 x 2 bed 2 x 3 bed 60% 

Follygate, New Road 

8 

Folly Gate 3441/17/OPA, application is proposing 30% AH.  – Granted at 
appeal.  RM only 

30% 

P
age 37



Hatherleigh Market 

  

 
Reserved matters application determined and started on site,  

 

Little Davey House, 
Horrabridge 

4 including 
adapted 4 bed 

unit 

Ex care property being converted and will include bespoke 4 bed 
wheelchair adapted property: The proposal is for the conversion of 34 
New Park into two houses, plus two new build houses on the existing 
garden area, in total providing four affordable rented houses. - 2 x 3 bed 
new build 
- 1 x 3 bed house (part of conversion) 
- 1 x 4 bed accessible/adaptable house (part of conversion). This house 
is not proposed to be wheelchair accessible, but will be completed to an 
adaptable and accessible standard (building regulations part M4(2)).  
s106 signed and due to start on site.  
  

100% 

 Lewdown, Cross 
Roads 

4 

Residential site adjacent to the primary school. S.106 signed and 
planning consent granted July 2016. On site 3212/21 4 x 2bed & 4 x 3 
bed All Rent Plus 30%  

Lewdown, Jethros 
Motel 

8 

Application granted for Motel and commuted sum was requested.  
Additional application has been submitted for remainder of site to include 
30% AH. Outline only 

30% & 
commuted 

sum 

Lewdown, H16 
commuted 

sum 

Application started on site and almost complete.  Commuted sum agreed 
commuted 

sum 

P
age 38



Lifton, Fore Street 

20 

Application granted Gladman developments.   2536/20/OPA.  
2536/20 Outline only 

30% 

Lifton, Green Valley 
Meadow 

8 

Application granted at appeal APP/Q1153/W/17/3170746. Rent Plus and 
South Devon Rural Housing Association. On site and due to be 
completed shortly 4 x 1 bed and 2 x 2 bed RENT PLUS 

40% 

The Old Garage, Mary 
Tavy 

2 

2 x discount market properties occupied 
DNPA 

intermediate 
model  

North Tawton, 
Devonshire Gardens x 
2 applications   

Application 1 offering supported housing – no support from AH officers.  
Application 2 offering 30% AH which does have support from officers. 
1671/22/ARM.  3 x SR and 1 x Intermediate  30% 

North Tawton, 
Batheway phase 2 

26 

Application granted approval and s106 signed for 40% AH.  65 units in 
total.  1574/18/ful 
Intermediate: 3 x 1bed flats 3 x 1bed house 7 x 2bed house1 x 2bed flat3 
x bed house, 2 x 4 bed house 40% 

P
age 39



North Tawton 
Bouchers Hill 

10 

4237/17 application granted for 10 self build dwellings.  .  Applicants for 
the scheme have been advised to apply to SB register.  

10 Self build  

Okehampton, Exeter 
Rd (fatherford lane) 

  

Reserved matters approved 50 dwellings, RP not yet agreed.  
Conditional approval 0136/21/ARM.  Shared ownership 1 x1b, 3 x 2b, 2x 
3b 1 x 4b rented 2 x 1b, 7 x 2b, 3x3b, 1x 4b 40% 

Okehampton, Baldwin 
Drive 

4 

3 units of affordable housing agreed at appeal. TBD on size and tenure 

9% 

Okehampton, Crediton 
Rd P 3&4 

51  

Applications granted at outline with WYG unknown who developer will be 
yet. 1726/20/ARM parcel 3 8x1bed, 33x 2bed, 6 x 3bed, 4 x 4 bed 

51  

Okehampton, Crediton 
Rd  

12 

40259/18/ARM – No AH  2647/18/ARM – No AH  2885/18/ARM – 75 
dwellings to include AH - determined  8244/18/FUL determined – 12 AH 
units all rent plus  all occupied  9% 

Sourton, The 
Highwayman 

2 

Application granted to provide 2 x Discount Market Sale units.  On site.  

  

P
age 40



Tavistock, New 
Launceston Rd 
(broadleigh Park) 37 

Cavanna Homes 50% Shared Ownership = 18 & 50%  = 19 Rented.  
Onsite May 2019.  First tranche has been occupied. 4721/18/arm 10 x 
1b, 18x 2b, 9x3 25% 

Trendle, Kelly College, 
Tavistock 

£150,000 
commuted 

sum 

On Site and 50% of commuted sum due on completion of 50% of the 
site.  On site now commuted sum due. 

commuted 
sum 

Harewood House, 
Tavistock £159,000 

commuted 
sum 

On site.  Older persons housing Vacant Building Credit claimed off site 
sum agreed.  

commuted 
sum 

Butcher Park Tavistock 
(embden grange) 

38 

38 units completed and occupied.  Plymouth Community Homes  

35%  

Brook Lane Tavistock 
  

0955/17/FUL planning decision issued and s106 signed. 2 x 1, 2 x 2, 2 x 
3 rented and 2 x2 shared ownership.  Westward housing. 0955/17/FUL 40% 

Tavistock, Callington 
Rd.  P1 

68 in total 

Outline granted for up to 750 homes.  First phase has been submitted in 
3 x applications totalling 398 dwellings.  1/3 rent, 1/3 Rent Plus and 1/3 
Shared Ownership.  Additional units may be provided through Homes 
England strategic funding.  Units started to be completed and handed 
over.   
 

17% with 
clawback for 

railway 

P
age 41



3345/18/arm 250 dwelling application – 4x 1b flat, 9 x 2 bflat, 19 x 2 bed 
h.9 x 3 bed h. 
 
2780/18/ARM 6 x 1 bed Flat, 5 x 2 bed FOG, 8 x 2 bed house, 8 x 3 bed 
house. 

Tavistock, Plymouth 
Rd P2 

75 

250 units with 30% AH.  Outline only 

30% 

Springhill Hostel, 
Tavistock   

WDBC looking to regenerate the current building and to increase 
numbers due to major defects.  Planning approved.  100%  

 P
age 42



 

Report to: Hub Committee 

Date: 12 July 2022   

Title: Q1 Plan for West Devon Progress Update     

Portfolio Area: Councillor Neil Jory 

Leader   

Wards Affected: All 

Urgent Decision:    N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken: 
 

 

  

Author: Neil Hawke  Role: Head of Strategy  

Contact: Neil.Hawke@swdevon.gov.uk  

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Hub Committee note the progress in delivering the 
Plan for West Devon Delivery Plans. 

 

1. Executive summary  
1.1 The Council adopted its Plan for West Devon strategy in 

September 2021.  
1.2 We are now in year two of the thematic delivery plan and 

this report provides an update on progress.  
 
 

2. .  Proposed Way Forward  
2.1 It is recommended that Hub consider progress as set out in 

Appendix A to this report  
 

3 . Implications  
Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  
proposals  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 
 

Y This report provides an update of progress in 
delivering our corporate strategy. Transparent 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



reporting and scrutiny of progress by Members 
contributes to good governance of the Council 

Financial 
implications to 
include reference 
to value for 
money 
 

Y  The report provides a summary update of 
expenditure against agreed corporate strategy 
budgets but does not make any recommendations.  

Consultation & 
Engagement  

Y This report acts as a public report of progress in 
delivering our ambitions for West Devon  

Risk N    
Supporting 
Corporate 
Strategy  

Y  All  

Climate Change - 
Carbon / 
Biodiversity 
Impact  
 
 

N  Climate action is a specific theme within the report  

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
Equality and 
Diversity 
 

N  

Safeguarding 
 

N    

Community 
Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

N  

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

N  

Other 
implications 

N  
 

 
 
Supporting Information 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Quarter 1 - Integrated Performance Management Report   

Page 44



A Plan for
West Devon

A Plan for West Devon – Progress 
Update 
Quarter 1 2022/23 (April – June 2022)

P
age 45



A plan for West Devon

Page 3 – Introduction 
from Leader 

Page 4 – Performance 
on a Page 

Page 14 - Strategy 
Project Spend

Page 5 – Our Performance 
by Theme

Page 16 – Strategic 
Risk Assessment

Page 18 – Next Steps 

A Plan for West Devon – Progress Update 

Page 6 – Communities
Page 7 – Community Wellbeing
Page 8 – Homes
Page 9 – Economy
Page 10 – Natural Environment
Page 11 - Built Environment 
Page 12 – Inclusive Services
Page 13 - Resources

Page 15 – Key 
Performance Indicators

P
age 46



A plan for West Devon

Introduction  

It’s hard to believe that we are already into year two of our ‘Plan for West Devon’ 
delivery plans, with a significant amount of the actions from year one either having 
been completed or carrying on into this year (many are multi-year activities). 

We know that cost of living increases are affecting all our residents and I’m really 
pleased that we have been quick to start processing the £150 government energy 
support payments through the Council Tax system. At the point of preparing this 
report, over 13,000 households have received their payment. 

Of course, we must also plan for the longer-term prosperity of the borough beyond 
the current challenges. We have been heavily involved in working with partners 
across the area in preparing bids to both the Shared Prosperity Fund and Levelling 
Up Fund round 2. Both these bids will be submitted to Government in the summer 
and we hope to hear positive news before the Autumn. 

Cllr Neil Jory 

Cllr Neil Jory 
Leader West Devon Borough Council 

During this reporting period :-

Our Plan for West Devon was adopted in September 
2021 and we continue to make significant progress 
against the actions which will contribute towards our 
longer-term vision for the area.

We celebrated Pride Month –
and raised the flag at our offices 
in support of Tavistock Pride & 
the LGBTQ+ community  

We’ve processed £2m of Council 
Tax Energy Support Grants to 
13,000 households 

Cllr Mott and Cllr Pearce 
were reappointment as 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor 

We allocated £40,000 to 
Tavistock Rugby Club to 
help them purchase some 
land for training 

P
age 47



A plan for West Devon

Section 1 – Performance on a page

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

This Period

Status of specific actions in A Plan for West 
Devon

Not due to start Significant Issues Slight Delay On Track

There are a total of 98 actions to be delivered within the 2021/22 delivery plan. Good progress 
has been made with the majority on track to deliver as planned. 

Agreed Strategy Budget 
2022/23

£404,500 

Spend to Date £39,913
Forecast to year end £370,500 
Forecast Variance £34,000 under

Spend against approved strategy programme 2022/23

At this stage of the year, we are forecasting a small underspend of £34,000 however 
we are still early in the year and will keep this under review. 

Performance against Key Performance Indicators –
number of KPI’s by status  



0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Last period

This Period

On Target Slightly Off Target Off Target Not due to report

Risk Management Profile – Average Risk Score across 
Strategic Risks





Average Strategic Risk 
Score last Period 

Average Strategic Risk 
Score this period

12 14

The average risk score for our strategic risk register has increased however this is 
due to the removal of a low scoring risk which reduced the previous score. It does 
not reflect a significant increase in the Councils risk profile. 

N/A - First report including KPI’s 

P
age 48



A plan for West Devon

Section 2 – Performance against the Council’s Priorities 
Delivering on our Plan for West Devon 

This section of the report sets out the performance 
under each of the Council’s theme areas. The 
themes underpin our overall ambition for West 
Devon. 

Each year for the next three years, we have set out 
a number of specific deliverables in our Thematic 
Delivery Plan. 

The table to the right sets out how many of those 
are currently on track, how many are slightly off 
track and how many are at risk of not being 
delivered as planned. 

More detail of progress per theme can be seen on 
the following pages. 

Overall Performance Against Actions 

Status 
Total Actions 
Within Category 

% of overall
actions 

Compared 
to previous 
Quarter 

This action is on track with good progress being 
made. There are no significant risks which require 
action and we are on track to deliver as planned

54 86% First Quarter

There are some issues or risks which are requiring 
management but a plan is in place to bring back on 
track

9 14% First Quarter 

There is a significant risk that we cannot deliver
this activity as planned. Regular monitoring and 
support from Lead Member and Senior Leadership 
Team is required 

0 First Quarter 

This activity is not yet due to start in the current 
year 0 First Quarter 

Totals 63 100%



?

!

P
age 49



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Empowering our 
communities to 
enhance their 
area

4 2 2 
(SC1.3 and SC1.4) 

Supporting the 
voluntary sector 
in responding to 
community needs

1 1

Our communities and the voluntary sector continue to work together in order to make a positive impact across the Borough 
- On 5th April, the Mayor recognised the significant contributions our residents have made at the Mayoral Awards
- Allocated £40,000 to Tavistock Rugby Club to help them purchase land for training – ensuring the longer-term future of the 

club is secured  
- Held a briefing for Town and Parish Councils on the Homes for Ukraine scheme – ensuring that all key partners have the 

opportunity to work together in the interest of our communities 
- Considered the work of our key partners, and recommended that, subject to submission of quality updates to grant 

submissions, the funding be extended for a further two years 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

• SC1.3 – Plans to re-establish Town and Parish 
Links meetings have been delayed however this 
has been to enable discussions with DALC about 
how we may make them more effective. We plan 
to hold the first of a refreshed Links meeting in 
September 2022

• SC1.4 Launching a new community events fund 
has been carried forward from last year but the 
aim will be to launch the scheme in October 
focusing on events coming up in the following 
year 

Focus for next Quarter

• Work with key partners on updates to the partnership funding applications – for consideration by Hub in September 
• Develop a plan for reinvigorating the Town and Parish Links meetings (with Devon Association of Local Councils) 
• Develop the events grant scheme for consideration by the Advisory Group 

P
age 50



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Reducing Health 
Inequalities & 
rural poverty 

2 1 1 
(CW1.1)

Leisure provision 
that meets
residents needs

2 2
Mental Health 
and Wellbeing 3 3

Many of the actions within the wellbeing plan require us to work closely with partners such as Public Health, Citizens Advice, Devon 
County Council and others. It is pleasing that during this period we have continued to build effective working relationships across 
these groups with some of the key activities delivered in the past quarter being:-
• Worked with partners to identify an area for delivery of a rural poverty pilot (see comments below) 
• Paid out some £2m to 13,000 households as part of the £150 Council Tax Energy support scheme (and agreed a discretionary 

scheme for residents that aren’t eligible for the main scheme) 
• Developed a draft ‘Information Bulletin’ regarding support available for the cost-of-living pressures being faced – subject to 

agreement by Hub as part of the Health and Wellbeing Pilot report. 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

• CW1.1 – Development of a Rural Poverty Pilot has 
been delayed slightly – but for good reason. The 
longer planning period has meant that a range of 
partner organisations have been able to shape the 
pilot. An update on this will be considered by Hub at 
this meeting. As a side note, it is recommended from 
this point onwards to refer to it as a Health and 
Wellbeing Pilot. 

Focus for next Quarter

- Develop a plan (with partners) for commissioning of youth support over the remainder of the year 
- Promote (via a leaflet and online Support Hub) the support available to residents as the Cost of Living continues to impact 
- Continue delivery of Health and Wellbeing pilot in a geographically defined location 

P
age 51



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Housing for 
Place 3 3
Housing for 
People 3 2 1 

(IH1.6)  

Positive progress continues in responding to the housing crisis within the Borough and during this quarter we have:-
• Adopted a new 5-year homelessness strategy 
• Agreed year 2 delivery plan for our Better Homes Better Lives strategy 
• Considered options for how we can better structure our teams to respond to housing need in the Borough – with a proposal agreed to increase the 

team by 4fte 
• Worked with partners to develop plans to support our Ukrainian guests by carrying out property assessments 
• Gone to tender on the SpringHill (although see risks section below) 
• Housing needs assessments at Brentor and Princetown have been undertaken 
• The Leader has written to Rt. Hon. Michael Gove lobbying for action in response to the housing crisis
• Promoted the package of support (including grants) to support warmer homes 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

- While 4 additional posts have been approved to 
support our ambitions to respond to the housing 
crisis, there is a risk that we may not be able to 
recruit suitable candidates – local government 
recruitment across all roles is currently 
challenging. 

- IH1.6 – following the tender process, no tenders 
were received. The team are reconsidering 
procurement options. 

Focus for next Quarter

- Re-consider tender process for Springhill and award a contract 
- Finalise results of Housing Needs Assessments for Brentor and Princetown 

P
age 52



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 

Total 
Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Promote Destination 
West Devon 5 4 1

(TE1.1)

Helping West Devon
Towns and 
Businesses thrive 

5 5
Respond to 
opportunities to 
enhance the
economy

2 2

Work has continued supporting our economic recovery from the pandemic and planning for the future. 

During this period we have:-

• Developed our plans for a co-ordinated marketing programme, with the #MyPlace campaign being well received 
• Focused on development of plans for our grant submissions to the Shared Prosperity Fund and Levelling up Round 2 
• Continued to work with Okehampton Town Council and businesses in the area to consider the feasibility of a Business Improvement 

District 
• Commenced development of a Visit West Devon website 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

• TE1.1 – there have been delays with developing a 
three year marketing plan (2021/22 action) and this 
has carried forward to 2022/23 for progress. 

• The deadlines for submission of bids to Levelling Up 
Round 2 and Shared Prosperity Fund are tight but the 
team are focused on collaborating with partners to 
ensure the deadlines are met. 

• A significant number of the actions within this plan are 
to be delivered by our Placemaking team who are 
currently recruiting for a Head of the Placemaking –
actions have been reallocated to other team members 
but there will be reduced capacity for the next couple 
of months. 

Focus for next Quarter
- Enhancing engagement with the farming community in respect of our Digital connectivity ambitions 
- Continue progressing plans for a BID in Okehampton 
- Submission of bid to Levelling Up Round 2 (July) and Shared Prosperity Fund (September) 

P
age 53



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Working towards 
net zero 4 3 1

(NE1.1)

Making the best 
use of our  
incredible natural 
environment

6 6

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

NE1.1 - Work progresses on the EV fleet 
replacement but a lack of existing EV charging 
infrastructure, limited range of some EV’s and the 
large area covered by some vehicles represents a 
challenge in terms of ensuring that service delivery 
remains efficient with an EV fleet. We have now 
engaged with a contractor to support us with 
delivery of this activity 

Focus for next Quarter

• Continue engagement with Energy Savings Trust 
• Hold a meeting of the Environment Advisory Group with a specific focus on informing our EV Strategy for the Borough 

Good progress is being made on delivery of the specific actions within the year one delivery plan for Natural Environment (in addition to 
all of the actions within our specific Climate and Biodiversity Action Plan). During this period we have:-
• Supported planting of 26 trees at Bishopsmead green space in Tavistock. Our Councillors and grounds maintenance staff worked with 

ParkLife SW to plant the tress that were kindly donated by Stone Lane Gardens 
• Commissioned the Energy Savings Trust to support us in developing plans for conversion of our fleet to Electric 
• Commenced development of an Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for the Borough 

P
age 54



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Celebrating 
our heritage 
and ensuring
its protected

4 4

Planning 
infrastructure 
for the future

4 4

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

• The Councils Head of Placemaking left to take up a new 
role during this period and we wish her all the best for 
the future. Recruitment is underway but may take some 
time before we can have a new post holder in place. 
This may impact on the ability to deliver all elements of 
this theme in line with the original plans while we 
prioritise support to the Levelling Up bid. This will be 
kept under review by the Senior Leadership Team 

Focus for next Quarter

• Submission of bid to Levelling up Round 2 
• Recruitment of Head of Placemaking to lead the delivery of this strand of the strategy 

This quarter we’ve continued positive progress against delivering our plans for the built environment including:-
• 24 Conservation Areas in West Devon have been reviewed with an officer recruited to take this work further forward with 

Tavistock, Lamerton and Okehampton identified as areas for appraisals to be prioritised
• Continuing to work with Okehampton Town Council and businesses to explore the feasibility of a Business Improvement 

District 
• Secured funding from Government to launch a Joint Local Plan engagement portal – enabling better engagement with 

residents
• Held Neighbourhood Planning referendum for Milton Abbot, Chillaton and Kelly (23rd June) 
• Refined our bid submission for West Devon Transport Hub – which will be submitted to Levelling Up Round 2 by 6th July 

P
age 55



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Being a 
listening and 
accessible 
Council

5 4 1 
(IA1.2) 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

Action IA1.2 – Our work to develop a customer access 
strategy has been delayed and we therefore propose 
rolling this action forward in to Year 2 of the delivery
plan. The strategy is being developed and the principles 
considered by the Advisory Group in June. It will now be 
refined to take onboard the feedback from that group 
with the final version being considered in September.

Focus for next Quarter

- Consider the outcome of the customer contact review and recommendations from that.
- Scope, with the Lead member and Leader, a Residents Satisfaction Survey for carrying out in September 2022 

Over the past couple of years, how our customers access our services has changed (much of which was forced by Covid-19 restrictions 
closing our receptions). During the last quarter we have:-
• Considered a draft Customer Access Strategy with the Advisory Group 
• Have prepared a ‘printable’ leaflet for our residents setting out the support available to them as the cost of living increases (supporting 

our aims of being an accessible Council 
• Considered the outcome of the Customer Contact review and officers will now take work forward to deliver 
• Published a clear report setting out the Council achievements during the year, including a press release with the key headlines so that 

all residents are able to see the work the council has delivered over the past 12 months 

P
age 56



A plan for West Devon

Focus Area 
Total Actions 
2022/23 On Track 

Slightly off track 
but plan in place

Risk that unable
to deliver on time

Not yet due to 
commence

Value for money 
of existing 
services

3 2 1
(R1.1)

Finance fit for 
the future 7 6 1

(R1.6)

Work has continued on delivering our ambitions for enabling our residents to do as much as possible online and to ensure that
all of our staff are supported to deliver the best possible service to our residents. During this quarter we have:-
• Continued with the process of closing our accounts and preparing for our annual audit 
• Finalised KPI’s for the coming year, with the first update on the revised KPI’s being included later in this report 
• Carried out an assessment of how much the Council spends locally – with the results being considered by the Advisory 

Group in July. 
• Gone live with our new HR and Payroll system for Members and staff meaning greater ease of use. 

 ? ! Key Risks / Issues

• Action R1.1 - There have been delays to the go-live of 
our new planning portal and back office system. We 
have mitigated this by extending the current contract 
with our current provider by 12 months. This has been 
funded from the project contingency budget. 

• Action R1.6 - We had anticipated that the Government 
would give Local Government a 3 year finance 
settlement however this has not been the case and so 
uncertainty remains about funding beyond next 
financial year. 

Focus for next Quarter

- Continue with progress on the Future IT programme 
- Hold a ‘meet the buyer event’ in July for potential suppliers to meet procurement officers from all Devon Councils and enable them to understand how they may be able to 

work with us in the future 
- Annual Audit of Accounts 

P
age 57



A plan for West Devon

Section 3 – Programme Spend 
Alongside the adoption of our Plan for West Devon, we have developed a Thematic Delivery Plan which includes resourcing requirements over and above 
our business as usual services. This section sets out the financial performance against the agreed Strategy budgets. 

Theme 

Agreed 
Budget 
2022/23

Spend to 
Date 

Forecast 
spend to year 
end Notes 

Communities £15,000 £0.00 £12,000 Seamoor Lotto Campaign and community events fund will both be launched in the Autumn 
– it is unlikely that the £3,000 for the voluntary sector will be needed 

Community
Wellbeing

£37,500 £0.00 £27,500 Health and Wellbeing pilot go live is likely to mean an underspend of approx. £10,000 in 
this year which we’ll carry forward to 2023/24 as delivery of the project continues 

Homes £30,000 £0.00 £30,000 Costs related to the delivery of Housing Needs Assessments 

Economy £197,000 £39,308 £197,000 Actuals to date include Business Support contract (BIP), economy and broadband officer 
salary costs 

Natural
Environment

£39,000 £605 £39,000

Built Environment £46,000 £0.00 £30,000 There have been delays in the recruitment of the Conservation Area resource . This post has now been 
appointed to but will result in an underspend 

Inclusive Services £5,000 £0.00 £5,000 Costs associated with the delivery of Residents Satisfaction Survey – scheduled for Autumn 

Resources £35,000 £0.00 £30,000 Bulk of this cost relates to the development of a new website for the Council. Project plan currently 
being developed. £5,000 underspend relates to Local Supplier Development- as we have 
commissioned this support at no cost to us through Devon and Cornwall Procurement Partnership

Ensuring that we make the best use of the funding available to us 

P
age 58



A plan for West Devon

Section 4 – Key Service Performance 
Ensuring that our services meet the needs of our residents and businesses

This section of the report will set out 
how we are performing in some of our 
key service areas. These measures 
are deemed to be important in 
supporting our delivery of key 
activities within A Plan for West 
Devon.

These KPI’s are deemed to be at the 
‘Strategic Level’ of our performance 
management framework. 

The next two pages set out the high-
level overview of performance against 
the KPIs 

Hub Plan for West Devon 

P
age 59



A plan for West Devon

KPI Performance 
KPI Description Good Looks Like 2022/23 Performance 

compared to 
last period 

How its measured Narrative 

Target This 
Period 

Processing speed housing 
Benefits (Average number of 
days to process new claims)

Lower than target

<17 days 12.45 
Average last 

period 13.1 days

Calculation of number of 
days from receipt of 
claim to finalising 
processing 

The number of days to process claims on average 
during April and May 2022 has improved slightly over 
the average for Jan-March 2022. 

Staff turnover rate Between 5-10%
<10% 5.8% NA First report 

Total number of leavers / 
total workforce in period 
*100 gives a score 

Average 322 employees (includes shared services)  
April – June with 19 leavers. Employee retention 
rates of 90% or higher are considered healthy for an 
organisation. 

Average number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
collections of household waste 

Lower is better 

<80 282 
See note

Feb – 169
March – 489
April – 426
May – 138 

Average 282 missed collections (April / May) 
demonstrates continuing levels of missed collection 
above target of under 80 per 100,000 

% of complaints responded to 
within timescales 

Higher than target
95% 97.1% First report 

Total number of official 
complaints responded to 
within timescales (both 
stage 1 and stage 2)  
divided by total number 
received 

There continues to be a focused effort on ensuring 
complaints are handled on time. 35 complaints were 
due a response within the quarter, 34 responded to in 
time, 1 overdue. We continue to hold weekly progress 
meetings with services with outstanding complaints to 
ensure this performance continues to improve. 

Percentage of customers 
completing a process and 
reporting a positive satisfaction 
with the process 

Higher than target 

>75% 75.5% N/A First Report

Every web form 
submitted asks users to 
complete feedback 
forms.  This is the % of 
customers scoring 
positively (4 or 5 stars)

This is the first time we have reported on this 
measure.  Of the 812 ‘feedback’ measures received, 
613 were 4 or 5 stars. We will be further enhancing 
this measure by implementing a system that also 
enables telephone customers the opportunity to 
provide feedback at the end of the call 

P
age 60



A plan for West Devon

KPI Performance 
KPI Description Good 

Looks 
Like

2022/23 Performance 
compared to 
last period 

How its calculated Narrative 

Target This Period 

Processing of Major 
Planning Applications -
% determined in time 

Higher 
than 
target

60% 80% 
Up from 66.6% 

last period

Total number of 
applications determined 
in the period on time 

Note, latest available data is for Q4 2021/22 

Processing of Minor 
Planning Applications -
% determined on time 
(with extensions) 

Higher 
than 
target 80% 94% 

Up from 72.79% 
last period

Total number of 
applications determined 
in the period on time 

Note, latest available data is for Q4 2021/22

Planning Enforcement 
Cases Outstanding 

Down
ward 
trend

161 
Up slightly from 

144 in last period

Outstanding cases at 
beginning of quarter plus 
cases received during 
quarter, less cases 
closed during quarter 

Note, latest available data is Q4 2021/22 
Enforcement cases received during quarter – 45
Enforcement cases closed during quarter – 46 

P
age 61



A plan for West Devon

Section 5 - Strategic Risks June 2022
The following section sets out an overview of the current strategic risks and on the following pages we provide detail for those that are within the ‘Red’ 
scoring. Each Council service area has their own risk register and where a risk reaches a level that it can no longer be managed by that service area 
alone, it escalates to the Strategic Risk Register. 

P
age 62



A plan for West Devon

Overall 
Scoring

Risk  Score (Current)

Risk Score History

Likelihood 3 x Impact 5 

Risk Direction 

Risk 
Title:

Business Continuity 

What is the 
risk?

The risk is that we do not develop and keep maintained robust processes to ensure business continuity in the event of a significant event occurring, 
e.g. Failure to ensure the continuous availability of critical IT systems leading to inability to deliver key council services.

What is 
causing the 
risk?

Developing and maintaining robust Business Continuity Plans requires significant and sustained focus. During Covid-19 response, the Councils risk 
profile has changed as we have relied much heavier on working in different ways (for example more staff working from home the majority of time) and 
with significant pressures being placed on some of our key delivery partners/ contractors. Work is required to update our BCP’s to the changing 
environment that we are operating in.   International events could lead to an increase in cyber-attacks on UK Government agencies and we could see 
a return to increasing numbers of Covid-19 cases meaning staff are not well enough to attend work. 

What is the 
level of risk?

Likelihood of risk occurring 4 (Likely) What are we doing to reduce the risk?

• Having two HQ locations is main mitigating factor - however an outage of power/ICT at 
either location would lead to a serious disruption of service. 

• Agile working further reduces reliance on two office buildings. 
• Locality workers can be despatched more easily to ensure customer engagement can be 

maintained during any incident. 
• Business Continuity plans have been updated - priority areas - ICT Networking - Payroll & 

Creditors Payments; other plans need to be made more robust – further work underway 
for the new year 

Impact 

Financial 5 (Catastrophic) 

Service Quality 5 (Catastrophic)

Reputation 4 (Major)

Legal / Regulatory 2 (Minor)

Health and Safety 3 (Moderate)

Morale / Staffing 3 (Moderate)

Current 
Update
(June 2022)

In the last update (March 2022) we were concerned at the increasing levels of Covid-19 infection resulting in Council staff unable to carry out their 
duties. We continue to see a number of employees unable to work due to Covid-19 infection and at the point of writing this report those cases are 
increasing with a number of key officers off work as a result of Covid. We continue to monitor the levels and encourage safe systems of work when in 
the office or in face-to-face meetings etc. 

20

P
age 63



A plan for West Devon

January February March April May June

July August September October November December 

15th Feb
Wellbeing 
Thematic Update

1st Feb 
Quarter 3 
Integrated 
Performance 
Management 
Report 
(Oct/Nov/Dec)

Hub

O&S O&S

22nd March
Economy 
Thematic 
UpdateEnvironment

Thematic Update

12th April
Quarter 4 
Integrated 
Performance 
Management 
Report (Jan-
March)

Hub

26th April
Homes
Thematic 
UpdateO&S

Quarter 1 
Integrated 
Performance 
Management 
Report (Apr-
Jun)

Built 
Environment 
Thematic Update

O&S

O&S

Community 
Thematic 
Update

Advisory Group workshops - Refine 
2022/23 Delivery Plans  

O&S

Inclusive 
Services 
Thematic 
Update 

Efficient 
Services  
Thematic UpdateO&S

1st Feb  – Wellbeing AG 8th March
Economy 
Advisory Group

Quarter 2 
Integrated 
Performance 
Management 
Report (Jul-
Sept)Hub Hub

Community 
Advisory Group

Inclusive 
Services 
Advisory Group

Efficient Services
Advisory Group

10th Jan
Environment
Advisory Group

11th Jan
Homes
Advisory Group

18th Jan
Built Env
Advisory Group

Audit

Audit

Plan for West 
Devon Strategic 
Risk Update

Plan for West 
Devon Strategic 
Risk Update

Hub

Annual Report 
of 
Achievements
2021/22

April 
Homes 
Advisory Group

Environment
Thematic 
Update

Environment
Advisory Group

Built 
Environment 
Advisory Group

Next Steps 

6thth Jan
Resources 
Advisory Group

8th Feb  – Community 
AG 

25th Jan 
Inclusive Services 
AG

P
age 64


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	6 Hub Committee Forward Plan
	7 Update on Progress of Rural Health and Wellbeing Pilot
	Appendix A Cost of Living Leaflet Draft
	Appendix B Rural Poverty - Ward Data - Bere Alston and Bere Ferrers
	Appendix C LSOA Bere Alston and Bere Ferrers - Combined Map

	8 Housing Crisis - Development and Enabling
	Appendix 1 housing development and enabling

	9 Q1 Plan for West Devon Progress Update - Integrated Performance Management Report 2022/23
	Q1 Integrated Performance Management Report 2022 2023


